United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

SIXTH COMMITTEE, 678th

MEETING

Wednesday, 30 November 1960,
at 3.30 p.m,

FIFTEENTH SESSION
Official Records

NEW YORK

CONTENTS
Page
Agenda item 66:
Qz{estion of the publication of a United Nations
Juridical yearbook: report of the Secretary-
139

General (contin ued). .

L I R )

Chairman: Mr. Gonzalo ORTIZ MARTIN (Costa Rica).

AGENDA ITEM 66

Question of the publication of a United Nations juridical
yearbook: report of the Secretary-General (A/4406 ond
Cor.1; A/C.6/L.471) (continued)

1. Mr. GONZALEZ GALVEZ (Mexico) wished to make
some general observations which could be taken into
account by the committee composed of the sponsors of
the original draft resolutionl/ which, as amended,
became General Assembly resolution 1291 (XI1I); such
a committee had been proposed by the Polish repre~
sentative (676th meeting).

2. He recalled that, when the International Law Com~
mission had recommended ten years earlier (A/1316,
para. 91(a)) that the General Assembly should author-
i1ze the Secretariat to issue a juridical yearbook, its
purpose had been to make the documentation relatingto
customary international law more accessible, That
consideration carried even more weight now that the
ranks of the United Nations had been swelled by the
admission of a large number of new States which
lacked legal archives or libraries and would find the
publication of a juridical yearbook extremely valuable.

3. The Secretary-General, in his report (A /4406 and
Corr.1), gave the impression that the publication of a
Yearbook would be of little use and would be a costly
undertaking, stressing the financial factor which was
actually secondary. So far as the usefulnessof a year-
book was concerned, that would depend essentially upon
its contents.

4. In that connexion, he noted that his delegation
attached the greatest importance to the inclusion in
the yearbook of a chapter containing articles written
by individual authors, in addition to a section cone
taining summaries of articles appearing in other
professional publications. The articles tobe published
in that chapter could be chosen by the International
Law Commission or by a working group set up by the
Commission in the form of a drafting committee.

5. His delegation thought that a chapter recapitulating
all the legal opinions of the Secretariat was likewise
essential,

Y official Records of the General Assembly, Thirteenth Session,
Annexes, agenda item 56, document A/C,6/L..432,

139

6. It was also strongly in favour of the proposal made
by the Legal Counsel (674th meeting) concerning the
publication of an index of juridical documents relating
to the United Nations, provided, of course, that such
an index formed part of the yearbook and was not issued
in its stead. :

7. Finally, althoughhis delegation wouldlike to see the
Committee approve a conclusive draft resolution now,
it would be willing to accept the Polish proposal (676th
meeting) to defer consideration of the item for two
years and set up a committee in the meantime which
would submit to the General Assembly, at its seven-
teenth session, a report concerning the material that
might be included in the yearbook.

8. Mr. TODOROV (Bulgaria) said that his delegation
was in favour of beginning publication of the United
Nations juridical yearbook at an early date, for it would
constitute an important contributiontothe progressive
development of international l1aw and would be extreme~
ly helpful to newly independent States, to jurists,
ministries of foreign affairs, universities and the
general public. Unfortunately, certain circles—the
same circles which were not in favour of the develop-
ment of international law in general—were hostile to
that idea and were usingthe United Nations Secretariat,
particularly the Office of Legal Affairs, for their own
ends. It was for that reason that a majority of the
delegations had rightly criticized the report on that
question prepared by the Office of Legal Affairs on
behalf of the Secretary-General, according to which
the yearbook would be a very large volume the publi-
cation of which would entail considerable expense.
Furthermore, the documentation listed by way of
example in the annex to the report was not of great
juridical significance and did not appear to have been
selected and classified in accordance with well defined
principles. The Legal Counsel had said that the report
in question had been difficult to prepare, but that it
was realistic and had been drawn up in good faith.
Actually, the Secretariat's attitude with regard to the
report drawn up by it pursuant to General Assembly
resolution 1451 (XIV) showed how a resolution could
be rendered meaningless when it was put into effect.
That was a practice which should be stopped. The
Secretariat was only an executive body, not a policy-
making body competent to interfere with the imple~
mentation of decisions taken by the General Assembly,
and its opposition should be overcome. He was there-
fore in favour of the establishment of a committee
which would assist the Office of Legal Affairsin draw-
ing up and classifying a list of the material to appear
in a future yearbook. He felt, however, that the
suggested two-year period was excessive, considering
that the item had been under discussion during three
consecutive sessions, and would rather see a provi=
sional report and plan submitted to the Committee at
its next session so that a decision might be taken to
begin publication in 1962,

A/C.6/SR.678



140

General Assembly — Fifteenth Session — Sixth Committee

9. The idea of an index which wo

sionally to replace the yearbook, as suggested b
Legal Counsel, was only another mega%?s of gictlg?-
tracking the publication of the yearbook itself. An
Index could, however, be useful if it was envisaged
simply as a bibliography entirely distinct from the
yearbook. It could be drawn up with the assistance of
the appropriate services of UNESCO, ILO and the
International Court of Justice. He would suggest that
the Secretariat should submit tothe General Assembly
at its next session a report containing an index cover-
ing the workofthe first few years of the Organization's
existerice so that the Sixth Committee could decide
whether such an index should be published.

uld serve provi-

10. He recalled that, on several occa

s sions, and in
particular at the 658th meeting, he had requested the
Office of Legal Affairs to let him know what were the

questions on which the Office had given alegal opinion.

Unfortunately, he had not been able to obtain a reply
from Mr. Stavropoulos; the latter's silence was in
marked contrast to the attitude of the Secretary-
General's representative in the Fifth Committee, who
gave delegations written replies on very complicated
matters. He thought that the Office of Legal Affairs,
without having to be expressly invited to do so in a
resolution, should be able to submit to the Sixth Com-
mittee each year a document containing legal opinions
given by it since the previous session, so that the
Committee could decide which of them would be of
interest for publication in the juridical yearbook.

11. Mr. TABIBI (Afghanistan) said that his delegation
had been supporting the idea of the publication of a
juridical yearbook for ten years: it had been a co-
sponsor of the original draft resolution which, as
amended, became General Assembly resolution 1291
(XII) and a member of the informal working group
responsible for preparing a document on the guestion
at the thirteenth session.2/ That question dated far
back, since it had been discussed by the Sixth Commit~
tee at the fifth, sixth, seventh and tenth sessions of
the Genex.-al As.sembIY- and by the International Law
Commission at its second and seventh sessions; at its
thirteenth session, the General Assembly had adopted
resolution '1 291 (XIII) in which it had acknowledged
that it was "a function of the General Assembly to take
appropriate measures to encourage the development of
international law" and that "the publication of a United
Nations juridical yearbook may constitute a useful
measure for that purpoge®, At the fourteenth session,
after a long discussion in the Sixth Committee, the
Assembly had adopted regolution 1451 (XIV) which
ptlxacgg Spidfxict Obligations on both the Committee and
; a?i i:r& :tr ?ié Pnder that resolution, the Assembly
carbook shoul d° ded that a United Nations juridical
gecr tarv-Ge be Published and had requested the
to m‘l Grgnergle Zal* as a first step, to submit a report
taining a detailec? Sembly at its fifteenth session con-
ot possible to outline of such a yearbook. It was
groate D rescind a decision which had all the
e fr. !!;gr *:i Orce for having been adopted unani-
mo‘;f)géd b ao tso would require another decision
P bors. Further_ thirds majority of the Assembly
report was, in thgmore, since the Secretary-General's
step", the point Of“‘;?l‘ds of the resolution, only "a first
considered final, = =V expressed therein must not be

Y 1bid., document 4 /¢ ¢ /L 428

12, The Afghan delegation agreed that the outline of
the yearbook appearing in the annex to the Secretary-
General's report was not in line either with the ma-
jority of the views expressed inthe Sixth Committee or
the International Law Commission or with the reports
of the Institute of International Law andthe Committee
on Research in International Law of the American
Society of International Law that had been reproduced
in the annexes to the Secretary-General's report to
the General Assembly at its seventh session.y The
views expressed in the Secretary-General's latest
report were quite different from those appearing in
his previous reports. The Afghan delegationhadhoped
that the Office of Legal Affairs would be the first to
support publication of a juridical yearbook, which would
contribute to the development of international law and
strengthen its role in the Organization. The yearbook
would serve as a unique source of information on
international law, which would be valuable to special-
ists and legal institutions throughout the world and
would also help to attain the purposes of General
Assembly resolution 176 (II) concerning the teaching
of international law, which stated that "one of the most
effective means of furtheringthe development of inter-
national law consists in promoting public interest in
this subject™ and that "greater knowledge of andfuller
information on the aims, purposes andstructure of the
United Nations constitute another positive method of
assisting the development of international law, of which
the United Nations is the main instrument". Unfor-
tunately, the outline suggested in the annex to the
Secretary-General's report did not serve the intended
purpose and amounted only to republication of docu-~-
ments already published elsewhere by the United
Nations. On the other hand, a yearbook that would
contain studies on problems of international law and
on the legal activities of the United Nations, legal
opinions of the Secretariat, documentson international
administrative law, and decisions of international and
national tribunals would be useful to the whole world.
He thought that it would be useful to request the in-
formal working group set up during the thirteenth
session to study the subject further; a carefully con-
sidered decision could then be taken in 1961 or 1962.

13. Mr. PERERA (Ceylon) remarked that, in spite of
the divergent opinions expressed on several points,
most of the delegations seemed to consider that the
idea of the publication of the juridical yearbook was,
in itself, acceptable.

14. He wished to point out that, when it came to
alternative proposals, only those representing an
improvement over the decisions previously taken could
be entertained. The Sixth Committee should consider
itself bound by resolutions 1291 (XIM) and 1451 (XIV),

- adopted by the General Assembly on its recommenda-

tion, to take further steps for their implementation.

15. To that end, the Ceylonese delegation, together
with the delegations of Bolivia, Ethiopia, Ghana, Irag
and the United Arab Republic, had prepared a draft
resolution4/ which took into consideration the points

of view and suggestions advanced as well asthe prob-
lem of financial implications,

16. With regard to the establishment of the committee
envisaged in operative paragraph 1, he thought that it

was the Sixth Committee which should ultimately decide

3
3/ Ibid., Seventh Session, Annexes, agenda item S5, documentA /2170
4/ Subsequently circulated as document A/C.6/L.477.




678th meeting — 30 November 1960

141

the choice of its members. He would like to point out
that the States listed in that paragraph were agreed
on the fundamental aspects of the question. He would
also have preferred that the question be settled at the
present session rather than referredtothe seventeenth
session; he considered, nevertheless, that the discus-
sions that had taken place in the Committee should
prove fruitful,

17. In conclusion, he remarked that, if the necessity
for the publication of the yearbook was recognized, as
it seemed to be, the question of cost was secondary.
In any case, the sponsors of the draft were not inclined
to accept any substitute.

18. Mr. MUSTAFA (Pakistan) said that he thought it
would be helpful to explain his position on the draft
}'esolutiOn to which the representative of Ceylon had
just referred. He recalled the observations he had
made at the 674th meeting, when he had said that he
was personally inclined to agree with the representa~
tive of Ceylon that an index was not a satisfactory
substitute for the juridical yearbook, but that, in view
of the circumstances emerging from the Secretary-
General's report, it might possibly be advisable to
defer the question of the juridical yearbookuntil some
future year, when more material on the subject was
available and the discussion might be more fruitful.
Then, at the 675th meeting, he hadproposedthe publi-
cation of a juridical digest, but that hadbeen envisaged
merely as a temporary solution primarily designedto
avoid complete abandonment of the original idea. He,
therefore, unhesitatingly supported the suggestion of
referring the question ofthe publication of the juridical
yearbook to a later date. He reservedthe right to make
some suggestions on the membership of the proposed
committee.

19, Mr. VALLAT (United Kingdom) pointed out certain
procedural difficulties: if the text of the draft resolu-
tion referred to by the representative of Ceylon was to
be distributed only on the following day, many delega~
tions would have some difficulty in making a decision
immediately, particularly since it raisedcertain diffi-
cult problems such as that of the composition of the
committee. He further noted that the idea of an addi-

tional report by the Secretary-General, suggested by
the Legal Counsel (677th meeting), seemed to have
been abandoned, and it was now proposed to appoint a
committee to prepare that report. Those problems de-
served study, and the necessary discussions and con-
sultations could not be held without the text of the
proposed draft resolution.

20. Mr, NISOT (Belgium) and Mr. PERERA (Ceylon)
suggested that the Chairman read out the draft reso-

lution.

21, Mr.ZEMANEK (Austria) drew attentionto rule 121
of the General Assembly's rules of procedure, which
stated that no proposal should be discussed or put to
the vote unless copies of it had been circulated to all
delegations not later than the day preceding the meet-
ing. He suggested, therefore, that the meeting be
suspended to allow a distribution of the text of the
draft resolution when the meeting resumed or, if that
solution were not acceptable, to adjourn the meeting
until the following day.

22. The CHAIRMAN acknowledged that the objection
of the representative of Austria was valid, butthought
that it would be preferable, perhaps, totake advantage
of the available time and to read out the draft resolu~

tion.

23, After a brief exchange of views in which Mr.NISOT
(Belgium), Mr. MOLINA LANDAETA (Venezuela),
Mr. VALLAT (United Kingdom) and Mr. DADZIE
(Ghana) participated, the VICE~CHAIRMAN read out
the draft resolution.

24, The CHAIRMAN then announced that the text of
the draft resolution would be distributed the following
day in all the working languages.

25, Mr. PERERA (Ceylon), referring to the remarks
of the representative of Pakistan, wished to empha~
size that the sponsors of the draft resolution did not
reject any proposals made with a view to improving the
proposed yearbook; they refused only to accept a
substitute, .

The meeting rose at 4.50 p.m.

Litho in U.N,

77601—May 1961~1,950





